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3 GENERL REPoRT- HOUSES AND LANDS —

ANCTHIN THE g:;a*»;:;g aoash il o D
paepfz?'?\ oF 1T /L. e bekwea 1063 - A6G
PREFACR ) R obest %iaw;)‘v\gﬁw ) %f’av;:’%- Higtomigon |
,“%éé"@; 5.0 “3;

xt. shmm ’tw mﬁawi&& thet this is not a researched document. I is dois%
true that far certeln portions, most of the ressarch in certain types |
of dommnu hes besn done, Soms sources have not been used, snd the

armealagy mu mrsiy seratched the surfece for any lmm&.m. Fmr an

even lhx*g@r mraivm of the land which will make up the park, no or

vm*y 1&&3@ resezerch has been done, The informetion for thls porticn %
of the lmd 1s whet appeers today Lo be correct. It s very doubtful ”;
if it is, For enothsr portion, initisl mw&rs}a is wall under wayy g
*Emt ia n@h ém&ai@é‘ And it must be remembered, tk&t» the rosearch -
' has b@an 1inited slmost entirely to ownership of gra;»@rty and the age :

@1‘ houses, Without en existing conditions uap, it is difficult te

relate these findings to.the landsceaps todeys Almost no research hss
baen done concerning the "stories® of the various properties as related
to the 19th of April. &lmost nobhing has baen done to esteblish the

locstion of roads, Nothing hus been done concerning the probsble

A s e

appesrance of stone walls, of the use of wooden fences of various Lypes,

or general farming practices.

In swmmary, if used with caution, it will probebly be safe to do some
genersl planning on the basls of the ini‘srmtim in t.hig ﬁnsumm end in

Drawing NHP-}M 3008, which nseds to be corrected so that i&. &gmss with
this document.

L8 in&ia&tsd, this narrative does not attempt to follow the droving
39533; &1’ infamtien discovared since & t.hn dF “wi.ng“ was ;:mpmﬂ has




oo

The documsmbation for this report hss been kept st & minluum, Sventually,
there will be a report with this title which will be backed by Historical
Research Reports, Archeclogical Reports, and &r&imstumi Reports. Dub
that is yours away. *

Citations to docummnts have been informsl. In most cases, ceples of

the documents are avallable in the park filss. The Interim Repork of the

Boston Metionsl Historie Sites Commission is cited as }H5C Report. The
few books which heve been used will be cited in an informel manners
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FISER HITLs

This wes the scens of the last reslreelistence by the British Forces
which had set out on the 18th; ths pluce where Major Pitcelrn lost his
horse and horse pistolsy the location of the Hayward incidert, The
County Road to Concord ren over the shoulder of ths hill and the road
to Bedford ren along the northwest side of Lhe hill, In 1775

Lbenezer Flsks owned on the south side of the rozd, and & smrll plece
on the north sids bordsring on ths rosd to Bedford, His wson, Benjamin,
cwnsd ths land on the other side, described as 254, Tals plece irecluded
the Bluff and the Zard between the Rluff and Fiske Hill, (B¥HSC Report
 51-53) | o |

Intsrim Historical Bese Map

Ebenezsr Fiske (Fisk) Hamﬁﬁts&d.l (BNHSC Report 52-=3)

This was the home of Lt, Ebere:er Fiske who died 19 December, 17?5,2
His real estote consisted of a Mension House, Parn and othar edifices
and aboub 69 écreﬁ of land. Eis personsl estate indicates that he was

fairly well-to-do by Lexdington standsrds.d

1 It is impo:sible &t this time to know ths prscise locstion of
many of ths various bulldings, 5o they will be treated as & homg-
stead group, The current spelliing of the family naces will be
used, but the 1775 common spelling, if there is such, will be
shown in perenthasie the first tims,

2 Cherles Hudson, History of the Town of Lexinston..., Revissd ed,
113211, Hereafter cited as Hudsom,

3 tlddlesex County Frobete Records, #7573, The lleting of land
may not be complets. Filske had two oxen wnd two young oxen, &
horse and a colt, 4 solid sampling of Lexington invertordss snd
v&x racords is needed before sensible statements of tomparative
wealth can be rade, ‘ R e T




| penjemin Fiske 1ived in the house following his fetnarts desth

end probebly before that event. IHore informetion on the fars 18

| found in his probute rwcard.i The buildings merbionsd in this

weret house, barTa shed, {probably wus ’%mi,lh ss:i‘t@r penjamints death
by the widow) hog house snd & Kt chen bullt after 1788, perhaps a8

8 separale ‘fmil&ﬁng. An invemtory of real estate mude in 1799 broks
the property ino small pi@c&s.‘ Thers wes & house oR this site wuntil
1955. In 1852, however, the owner of the house, Denlel Chamberiain
of Wesbt Cg&ri&ga; ma %59 daduéﬁgad from his veluation for the old
houss and oub wuilding. He hed §1200 sdded for & new houses Ib geems
that the now housa wes bullt on the eite of ths old houss - the
srcheclogicel report of Mre Foley will heve more to say on thise

Some of the materisl from the old house may have been included in

the new houses Ab 1east soms of the meterial which Kre Mertin Bashlsn

said he sslvaged {rom it in 1955 appesrs to be ;rs»l&ﬁlj

Some phatagmyha of the house showW & large barn in back of the housee
H,H. Houghton wrote & letle® concerning the house end events of the

6
april 19, 1775, Ha 1sbelled the largs bern 1872."

L 1TTL yalustion copbined thelr noldings. He diod in 1785. The
probate file is #7550« ( T
5 Architsctural Beport LY Architect Russell ¥, Feunde
5 The lebter snd aap &Fe in the Lexinglon Higtorical Soclety scrap

‘ nning on psg® 77. 7The letter is undated, but was written
aftar 1896, The leiter is on Colorado SAR 1stterhesd, and Mre Tuttle
was listed as prosident. Ho wes president from 1896 to 1900«
Ses H2215 Colorado sAR fils, NMimte Man KHPF»

e




April 19, 1775,

The sotion between James Hayward of icton and a British soldler took
place at the Fiske Homestead (BMHSC Report 52-3) There is a marker om
tha land now owned by the Lexington Historiesl Soclety noting this action,
It was erected by the Town in 1885 ®in the wall In fronb of Mr, Dudley's

house and eloss to the well®,T How olose the msrker is to tha site of

the wall is another matter, There is evidence which indiestes that the well
was in back of the house, A.R, khitney, & great grandson of Benjamin Piske,
wrote that his father told him Bfifty years ago" that when the British
soldier coms foul of the ﬁtah@n door, nesr which was the hog pen, }u

58W &n méima &vmm&g st the well,® Other deteils of thls story whif:h

was handed down Uy the children of Benjamin Fiske, concern {tems teken
by the soldler and later found in the hog yen.e This is not incompatible
with the approximate locstion of the merker as the house did not fecs the

road,

H.M. Houghton also wrote & letter concarning this ares snd drew s maplo
locste soms of the sites, He locsted the Haywerd Well south of the house,
awsy from tiae road end sald thet 4 was {illed and coversd soms years

bafore he wrote, He also pub a pump near ths road, sbout the site of the
9 ‘

Harkers

7 BEistoriesl Monuments end Teblets Erected by the Town of Lexi
&he NePw Nedle poil. This {& the report made by the conmittee
which set up the markers,
& Whitney's first initiel is difficult to read, and il may not be A,
Lettor is in the Lexington Historlecal Soclely, page 75 of cne of thalr
serap books, It is wndated, and to en unknown party - unless more can
be learned by examining the original,
9 Houghton's lstter cited zbove appesars to have been writien to a child
of Samuel Chendler, This it would not be the sketch which Mr, Houghton
gave the Rev, Carlton A, Staples, cited by Cobwrn, The Babtle of April 19, |
1775, p» 108n, A privstely printed pamphlet on Haywardims & photograph




10
Wounded Sritish troops were put in the Plske House. Dr. Jossph

Fiske submitted a bill on June by 3775 for eare of wounded trocps &b

Ebsnszer Pilske's on the zf&bh}l ‘

o 12
sonlamin Fiske's 25 At

Benjemin Fiske purchased this lend from his father in 1755 end sold

i3
it to Awos Marrstt in 1777. There is no record of any buildings

on it. The present stons wall Hi&, sssumed Lo be ths %muné&.r? on the

southoas

araves on Flske Hill,

The Koughton lettar ssid tist thres PBritish soldiers wers turied
i

in "your fstherts wood lot on the Bedford Roud® {Wood Strest).

% contid,
of Fiske Hill with & jump on page 54 Willizm Frederdck Adams,
Jemes Hoyward, .., Springfleld, Mass, 1911, This is in the Lexington
Room of the Cary Meamorlel Librery.

10Tere is & well south of the house which is visible today. The
top four or five feet of it are not filled, Iir. Mertin Bashin suys
thet there wers three wells around the house whan helived there
including thas one near the markers ' .

11 laxington Historical Soclsty, Document #1141, : ,
The whitney letter says that the British put five mortally wounded
soldlers in the Fiske parlor, Two might heve died by the 20th,
although Mr. Whitney eaid that when Hr, Fiske returned he found
the five dead. Thay were burled, sccording to Whitney, at Lhe
bobtom of the Fiske garden. <

12 The sits on MM-NHP 3008, shest 1 marked ¥Tradition site whare
aritish soldler wes shot® is besed on & statement in the Houghton
letter thst one wes Killed by the big rock opposite the Flske houss.
Por soms dsteiis on this ses the sscidon on the seuthssstern
boundary of the 60A in ths Historleal Survey Report on Lex-3..

13 A purchase of land by the Towm of Lexington from the two Fiskes
in 1773 for improvement of the road helps to establish the yiew
that the 1and in these desds is the land under discussion. 5

14 Saumed Chandlerd . o . R
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The map with ths letter shows the Chundler wood Lot north of a
"eross® wall with three graves nserthe well and the m&.u
A grave was shown £t about this site on & map in Hersey's

14
Heroes of the Battle Road, This land was cwned by Benjamin

Fiske in 1775, thus Whitnay's statemsnb that the wounded who

dled in the Fiske House wors buried in the Fiske garden pearly

agreed with Houghton's statement, if thers was gurdén mear the

wall, in 1799 there were ceversl gardens on the Fluke humsstead,
One was called the close gerden.  The spot shown by Houghton end
Fortar would heve been at the botiom of the gerdan, aithough -

outside it. If Houghton correctly located the grave near the road,
it is not in the park boundaeries, wnd wes perhips covered by the
1930 Wood Street. Houghton elsimed Lo h.va sesn ths gravs ond

the mep follows his view.

13 Samuel Chandler acquired the ewstern rart of ths Banjamin
Fieke 25A in 1828, It extended to Wood Strest snd wes described
a8 pesture and woodlund. It hss been sssumed that tha southers
boundery was Lex-D (KHP-MM 2004) along the current stous wall,
The 1828 desd duss not mention a wall along this bound, sltho.gh
thers wes & stone wall along this bound in 1756, According te
1828 desd thers was & "cross wall® along the Chandler wood lot, -
but it was along the northern bounds, bstween it and the Huszey
farm and cuteide the area of the park, - . - - -

16 Tuls map wes drawa lor Rev. Zdward O, Forter of Lexington by
francls B, Wheston in 1894, Fr, Porter wrobe verious accourt o
of this area and of Bostom, but & search of ths Boston Publie
librery did not discloss any work by Mr. Porter for which this
wep might have been prepared,

17 If they were the saws dead, Houghton claimed they died in his
father's house, Houghton locates this Lowsrd iaxington from
the Fiake house, ' '




Houghton loczted snother grave marked by en upright stone necr the
Lop of the hill, betwesn what he calls the %old Trail" snd the roed.
Cobura in The Battls (p, 107-8) mentdoned » greve, once merked Ly
stonos Lo the "little strip of ground bebwsen the old wod aew rosd®,
He followed Houghton's view of the roads which pub the historle road
&t aboub the location of the presant road. The modern rosd probably

ruinsd ths sits. #ncther grave hes bean pladed on tha wesl alde of

the hill. This i3 showm on the wap in Herssy, Cobura, in The Battls,

reported & gruve of %;xé:éri%&sh- soldiers ®a little wuy from the biulf,

over tha well on the opposits side of the roed azd ia a southerly
dirseilion...s” Thoers was no merker, and it dld not eeem that Codurn

knew the sxaet spob,

LAND USR®: Ebenecer Flske }Eﬁma&t%&ﬁ.m

The 1785 Banjemin Fiske homestead consisted of T6A &nd other pleces
including two scross the road from the homestead, A treining field
with en sdjoining pasturs Lobaling R};A,' and & 124 plece of wood,
mawing, and pasiure ware set acide for the usa of the widow. GShe
else had & stoek yard of 7% A, & small garden betwean the house
and barnm, snd one~half the clese g&r&@m A 2ilY field and pasture
of 294 1268 was sold. This left in 1799 a pasture of 114 called
Fiske Hill, & "Becver gray Meddow® of 24 150R, & south fi21d of TA
120K, the 214 house lot of 24 L14R, the west half of thy "cloaths®
[elosgf yurd north of the barn - a smoll plece, the pasture south

18 The probate record for Ebensszer Fleke gives no details on the
resl estete, except that it wes aboub 694 The probals record
for Benjamin Fiske ¢ontains more detedl and is the basis for
this sections ~ - - o o - L

i
&

i
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of the house of 1i 32R and a piece, 128R in size, east of the ham.m
Othsr portions in the probats record glve some detail sbout the location
of the barn yards and soms buildings,

The bounds of the 20A 1268 plece sold in 1790 can bs locsted, With
this as a base, with the informstion from the probate records, with
information from letsr deeds, snd &swﬂ&lly with the help of boundsry
1ines m:i remains of I.ara& marks ﬁm:x am %:ha 1938 mp@gm;himl ﬁ&ﬁ
of L&xing@an, land use inﬁ'axm timi hw besn ohmm on NHP-2 3»%,

sheal one.

Denjemin Fiske's Land,

In 1756 this was described as improved 1and wnd woodlsnd. This
included the bluff which wos probably woodlund. The 1777 deed was
silent on use. The land wus thén sold in thres pieces, In 1828,

a 21h plece — Lex~I on NHP~MM 200k - wes cescribed as pasture and
woodlend, The middle place of almost LA between Fiske Hill and the
bluff wes &lso sold in 1828 and resold several times, bub thare was
mt.hing in any dead to in»:t’..aam tﬁm use of ﬁzw iand until 1851, &b
thet time the grantor reserved the ri&ht to move the wood ﬁhich wes
then owt, Today & poad covers about on sore of the land mostof the
ysar, The connection tetwean this snd the ditch which bordered the

20
largsr portion of Lex-A is uncortain. The third and western moed

19 The totel is grester thin 76A,
20 For a discussion of the ditch see the Jacab hﬁtt@om
Research E@mz%, PP ?3-»5. e B ‘




plsce was the Bluff, and wis descrlbed in 1815 oe wood land,

Ghanges in Ficke Hi1X,

The lwgaat and sasternmozt portion of Benlamin Fieke's 254 was
divided for a housing development about ths time of the first

World var, Soms greding hss besn dons in connscilon with the houses,
A hase wsz built on the plece betwesn the hill end the bluff in the

20th esntury. The pond there mey be a 191k century work of msne

The major change h&& bteen in ths road, The curreat rozd which was
oullt in the 20th cerbury, has cul a gep through the hill and f£illed
it on both the sastzara and western end, There may have bassn 15th
certury rosd changss which slso chenged ths historie scene, Route
128 hes uede 1t very ddffiecult to concelve of what was probsbly the
besl poriion of the Fiske farmlend, #nd the 1962-53 relocation of
Maszachmseltls ivenue has caused extensive damsge to the southern

portion of ths lumi, Qﬁpéﬁi&l},}' to the stons wallsy
4 house wes bullt on the western slops of the hill im the 20th century.
Extensive land changes wers made in the pmséss. Other bulldings

do not 2esr to have csused extensive changes in the landscapes

ROAD S

The road $o Sodford on the ssstern slope of Fiske Hil) is an old
road, The portion nesr the park has been moved ssveral timss,

but now may bs in en esrly locsuions




The road over Flske Hill was known is the Country, or County Road,
on the rosd froa Lexington to Concord, or variations on that. I%
was & part of the road from Cambridge to Concord, Despite lute
ninsteenth century dplnlom, the curpert road is probably not the

corpeat location for the 1775 road,

The Country Roed was jart of the boundary bstwean Benjamin Ficke ard
Ebenessr Flske in 1775, Although only soms of the desde have besn

run from the jresent back to 1773, those studied indicate that what :
is now sbandonsd rosd was the spproximte 1&&@3.&; of the 1775 :éa&id}g

46 Lhe rosd comss over the hill snd goss down tha west side ths ploture
1s cloudler, One plece of land which cume from Benjemin Flske's 25 4,

gelned rights to land between the present Msssschusstte Avenue end the

21  without the modarn cub, the current locstiom would have besn a
steeper climb than other possibls routes, Houghton axprossed
the opinion and indiested on his msp that the old roaxd wes near
the locaiion of the modern road, Mr, Mertin Deshien expressed
the sama opinion to me in 1963, He scid the pressnt sbandoned
road wes btullt after the Civil War. A note on the 1885 desd for
ths Fiske farm excepting the land tsken for the new Concord Rosd
on the westerly side of the farm indlcstes that Mr. Bashlan is &b
loast partially correct. Ek.1706: 132, S - s

22 This doss not apply to the land to the north of the Floke House,
around what is now marked as the Heywerd Well, whare Ibenezer
Fiske owned on both sides of tha road, The old road can nob
be detected by cbservetion in this erea. There are photographs
of the houss teken about 1880 which might healp.

To the north of the present road, on the east slope, thore 15 a
section for which some title work hse been done, bul more work
nseds Lo be donss




previous road, Om down the hill there is a wall which seems Lo be
sccouted for by the rosd, especlally when read in light of information

from deeds, bul which doss not sesm to fit with ths expected locstion of
23

an earller road,

The 18th century right of ways were rather wids, and this might have

xept shifts in the road bed from showing in deeds. There is information
on the width of this rosd in 1738, At or near ths western foot of the
hill it was fowr m&é ar ‘Zzbwé# wide, Part way up Lhe hil}.ﬂa# road
was seven rods #sida, ﬂmn: six més; sm& u&;geﬁ.ﬁﬁt Fiéka'a houee 1t was

four rods wide,*  In 1773 the town voted to buy lend from Ebenezer

end Benjemin on the north side of Fiske Hill for "the better /iccommodation
of Travelling,® If this mesns that Cbenezerts lend wes on the north

d¢ide of the road, it wss on the east slope, neexr ths houss, The town

23 The Werren Breslin property, as purchased by the HPS, extended
to modern Massachusetts ivenuas, This wes decided in Lend Court,
plan #22003 A of 8/22/k9., Land Court Certificate lssued 5/7/59,
#101127, recorded Bk, 6351177, Research must go back of this te
astablish if the land betwsen ths roads was a part of Ban jamin
Fiske's land, or a part of the Ebenezer Fiske farm,

There 1s & 1790 decd which wentioned & wall on the western slops
of Fisks Hill, An 1816 deed gave measuremsnts, end it might be
possible to establish if the present waell is the 1818, and
hopsfully the 1790 wall, The road was said to be near it in '
1790, The current road and the road immediately prior to it are
on the same location near this well, On west, nearer ths foot
of the hill, a change in the road after 1824 might not be o
indicated in the deeds, for the land on both sides of the road
was owned by tha same man,.

2, Lexingtom Town Records, IILI: 137,




- wiles
. . s

voted monsy for this and to mend the highwey on the entire hili.gﬁ

The last stretch of abendoned road is at the foot of the hill snd

by the bluff, The deeds inﬁie&ta‘th&t thie is in about the right 5
locstion for the old road, although soms questions of detz=il ure

| raised by the location of tha w&llkmn the esst side of the ﬁ&uffcz$

This topogrephic:l festure cbviously dominited the roed below it, if -
the road ren as close to it as the abandoned road does, The British,
reslizing this, attemptad to check the Amerlicans by controlling it,
They ware driven off, (BMHSC Report, pp.51-2, Troop Novement Hap
(THN) 26-8)

Host of tho bluff was owned by Benlemin Fiske as a yart of his 25 acras,
It wes s0ld in 1815 as six scres of wood and beceme & part of the farm

which had bsen owned by Fiske.

The scuthern end of the bluff was removed to make it possible to widen
he rosd, Fleturss of the bluff before this changs sre sveilable.

The northwsstern pert of the bluff was a part of the Whittemors farm,
This portion is very sandy &n& soms of 1t was recently hauled away,

25 Ibid,, IVi215-17, No rscord of the yurchase has beén found,
The town rscords have not bsen searchsd, Thees items were
cslled to my attention by Mr, Zdwin Worthen. JIrs

26 See Jacob Whittemore Homestead Resssrch Report, pp. 40-1 and
especlally Lln,

The problem is that although the wall begen in & fixed place
und ended et the road, its length changed in various desds,



Jacob wWhittemore® Meadow

In 1779 when Jacob Whittemors sold his home and farm to Frekial Hall,

he included two plsces of meadow, one of five acres and one of two
scres. Both azbutted Josizh Mensfleld's property on the esst, The

2 acre plece was the southernmost and was probably outside the park
boundaries. It is not shown on KHP-MM 3008, The 5 acre §i§ea

bordered the County Road between the Flske Ferm and Josish Mensfield.

It wes part of the Muzzey estate when the mstale was divided between
John srd his brother, Jones, in 1838, In 1847 it wes sold at suctions
It has not been further traced, The 1779 end 1761 desds dascribed it as
meadow} the 1838 and i8&7 deeds described it as mostly meadow. It

sbutted a Fiske plece describsd as mesdow In the Fiske resl estate

U

givision.

o oy g

Josish Mansfield Ownar. "Bull Tevern"?

The lste Mr. Zdwin Worthen in & paper entitled "Southwest Lexington"
(p. 13) r:ferred to Mr, Bliss! psper on "Old Taverns" which was read
to the Lexington Historicsl Society in 1887. Theie Mr, Bllss said
that Bull Tavern was invaded and the bar ransacked by the Britizh

on April 19, 1775.%7  Mr. Worthen said that the Rev, Edmund Foster's
sccount was the basis for this statement. As printed in Fzra Ripley's

History of the Fight at Concard ( Concord, 1827, p.3k.) there is nothing

in Fostarts letter about ths British invading ths tavern and quenching
their thirst. The letter was written in 1825 and Foster knew the A

building as Benjamin's Tavern, (BNHSC, Report p.51)

27‘ Proceedinee of the Lexington Historical Socliety, I:78.
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| Ristory of Josish Mansfield holdings Prior Lo 17723 Joseph Brown of 17267

& consideration of the buildings vilch might heve been on the land, and
the L1775 oceupent, must walt until & historicel problem which might rslste
to tha lend is discﬁsmd, This problem goos back to the early history
of the Pisks farm. Cavid Fiske, the grandfsther of E:’bmﬁamr Flske, dled
in 1710 possessed of mch of what was to becoms the Ebenszer Fiske farme
In the é&vﬁ.&i&n of Devid's land in 1721, the wstasrn portien of about
fifey s&cmx on the south side af i;h@ Cmcar& Roed was grivea to a

v Henry Baldwin and a Timothy C&rtsr. ) Ths wesmm &‘:mt,wras of this

piece wers Josieh Hobbs and Hethaniel sihit&&mm, in 1?23 this rii‘t;y
scras was divided end Jobhn Pelrce, a Lexingion cordwiiner, sciuirsd the
wasternmost twanly seven 8cred. It still bordsrsd on the Concard Road
on the north, and N.otheniel Whittemore on the wesbt, OSemuel Ar@s Wed also
on tLhe wast, with the heirs of Emualistmrm. In 1726 Peirce sold

this lend, with a mension house to Jossph Brown, ancther carﬁw&mr.z&
Arown bought another thirty acres with house and bern in 1729, in a
different location in Laxington. His probate record secms to indicale
th&t he did not cwn the plece of David Fiske lapd vhen he disd, Efforts

to follow the Brown purchase of 1726 have failed.

Based on the original size of ths David Fiske farm, 1% did not sesm possible
that it could have extended far ensugh $o the west to include the 1775
Josiah Mansfisld holdings. (The othsr boundaries seemad to be fairly well
fixed so that 1% wes unlikely that the farm expanded to the east or south
betwesn 1721 and 3.??5,) Then rgw&reh on t,ha ﬁelsen hﬁli.dings dons by

28 The énacripuan was not mchly t.m wm. “and it was thirty scred,

But there are too many points in comuon to mally dmbt s;w. 3& was
the same lands \



Miss Niureen Dorion turned up enough information Yo make it llksly that
the Fiske holdings did extend farther west thun had been considared likelys
R&tmr,-thiﬁs pessarch indicated that the western sbutiors of David Fiske
were the western phubtors of the Josish gmmam holdings. Specificadly)
although the key deeds are w.iwing, the ressarch showed how Hathanisl
Whittemore probably built up his holdlngs south of the rosd, snd this land
abutted Josleh Mensfisld on the wast, The heirs of Lt. Dsvid Fiske were

the esstern sbubtors of a portion of this lmd.ag

Conclusioms It is likely that Joseph Brown cvned most of the land which

becase the "Bull Tevern" lend, snd thet there was & house on it in 1725,

29 The relsvant document 8 have not yet been discussed in & writlsn
reporbs Some of the xey items can bs merd Lonad here, In 1721 Thomes
Nelson bought s five acre pleca {rom Josish Hobbs which was bounded by

Nathsniel whittemore on Lhe north end the heirs of David Fiske on the
~easts It is sssumsd that this plece was then sold to wnitlemorey

snd that this was part of vhitbemarets 43 acres south of the rosde

inother plece wes of twenty scres which Thomas Cutler sold to Samuel

tmes on the south side of the Covnbry Road. It wus bordersd by

David Fiske on the east, gnd by Stearns, &nd had Josish Hobbs on the

north,  In 1725 this went 0 Thomas Nelson. Relson was on the north

presumedly Lhe Hobbe five scres, and the heirs of Laevid Fiske snd

ctearns on the easte, Ib is assumed that this ploce aled weni teo

whittenors, In 1730 Nehemish Abbotht sold & part of his rights te

the estgte of the lste Semuel Stearns o Hsthanlel wWhitiemores

This 26} sere plece had Kathaniel Whittemors on the north, prosumedly

the 20 scrs place purchased {rom Nelson, and Abbotb and Daniel

Brown on the east, Deniel is of special imterest. Joseph Brown

had & son Daniel who was married in 17288, This, and Joseph!s

purchsse of snother house and lend im 1729, makes it plausible

to bellevs Lhat pentel would have beesn on the ploce of David Fislsts

land Joseph bought in 1726, He appesrs te have been ihere in

1756 when Nehomish ibbott got his fetherts 200 scre farme, Lfforts

to learn more sbout Daniel Arown's holdings have failedy



It is ;w& known who owned this land and house betwsen 1726 and 1772, or
if the houss stood all thst time, It is possible that Jossphls son,
Daniel, was an ocwner, MHost of the possible avenuss of research have
been explored. E%’éma Resd did not own sny lsnd In 1771 according Lo the
valustion returned in thel yeeur, ot in 177R he @Q@ ths "Bull Tavera®
ferme The most Important possibility is the foot thet the house wned
by Mansfield in 1775 might have been fifty years old, |

The Farmp ; , ;

In 1772 Moses Resd sold Joslah Hensfield of Acton, a h}.ackémith, Lorty
aeres in iaﬂ@@ #hich fits the deseription of ihe Bull Tevern sitas
Thet fell 1% wes mortgeged aod we have o nore detallsd description avelle
able: mowing, pasturing, tillage, woocdland with a dwelling, a mill house
and & barn, It wss mortgaged again to Martha Sallisbury in 3?73; In
1782 Martha esmpl&imd to ths Middlesex Inferice Court that she had bean
Cunjustly ejected from the land by Benjamin lanforth. VYhesn tiiiis cocurred
18 not stated. Her title to the lend was confirmsd by the court. wWidow
Salisbury wss of Soston in 1773 and of Worcester in 1785 when she sold
the tract to Rethan Dudleys Further desds do not shed sny grest light on
the lsnd or the tulldings on its ~

Land Uses

There s little informstion sbout this. A4s mentioned, the 1772 morigage

sald the land was mowlng, pssturing, tillags and woodlend. This would have
ineluded & 3 3/4 A plece Mansfield Purchssed from Jacob Whittemors sarlier that
summer. This plece bordered the mein farm on the west for 43 rods, which gave



Mansfield en extra six rods along the road, It was described as upland
&nd swamp,

Hansfield sold & plece of zesdow - later known &8 thes "Hemmond Meadow"
to ihittemors that ssme dey, It was on the southesstern cornar of ths
basie Tevern fara, é@?&ittmm also owned a plece on the northeast
corner which was also msadow, It thus is posaible that the esstern purt
of the land was meadow, Thess are our best cluas a5 to land use from ‘i;lg

historicsl wai{i;_

&ccarding to 'gzmmzm %lml&&ans tw Tevern fwm must hmf*@ been a rathar
nerrow, deep plsce, This msans it would have been in the rather swenmpy lend
south of modern Routa 24, Tax records and sales prices, whan corrected

for variations caused by inflation, dejression, ete., and comparad with

the velues of other pleces of land, might indicate if any unusuel portion
of ths'}_and e

Buildingss

.&mm -hus been & house on this land as sariy as 1726, and this might have
besn stending in 1775. whan Josish Mansfisld bousht the lend from Moses Reed
in June, 1772, it hed @ mansion houss snd othar bulldings cm it. When he
mortgaged it that fell it had a dwelling house, a mill house and a bern.

#hat was a xill house? The only will - saw, fulling or grist - 1isted in the
1771 veluation for Laxington was owned by Samusl Winship, Jre The possibilitx
of a gead water supply on ths Mfsrial& l&aﬁ in 3:??5 d&as m‘& ssem too likal:,
‘althm,gh m& shangaa and csthar tapographic&l eh&-ggn migzt hiéc th.e 17?5
ms&ibilitim. 'i’ham tw@ tscta seca to point tc sem kinﬂ of mill @ther than
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& sew or grist mill, The term "mill house® points the sams way. It
probably refers to the houeing ovsr & clder saill}a

_There is a sketeh of Viles Tavern &&iad 1827 = at that dete Viles Tavern
was at this locztion which = shows a largs hcuse, & barn, stables, and
gnother butlding. The sketch doss not necessarily include all the
builaiimga{ The real problem is whether the sketch shows 1775 buildings,
1t seems esrtaln from the architectural features ~ end chimneys for one =

..at if the 1775 beele structure was standing in 1827, it had been

considerasbly modifisd by that dﬁtmsl The frequent chenges of ownership

ct 8 tims when ws know that it was belng used as a tavern make it possible

that one owner decided to either rebulld or thoroughly remodele

30  Mansfield bought the farm cutright from Reed, and it might appear
thst his mortgsge scom after that indicstes large capital lmprove-
ment s, The mortgege deed, howsver, indicites that Hanefield was
peying old debts Ly this mortgage. When he mortgaged the farm
again in 1773 no specific mention was mace of & mill houss, so 1%
probably was not a major building. By this time Mensfleld was
back in Actom.

31 Tax records and relstive sale prices must be studied to see 1f &
new house wes built or changes made, bub ths hopes of success
are not great., Real astals velues are lumped in such records, and
the value of many housss relative to the land was not greal enough
so that changes in the houses can be detected. See however, p.

asbove for other evidence,.-




The 19th of April, Who Was There?

Jogiah Hansfield cwnad the land on April 19, 1775, but &s esrly zs the
Merch 1773 mortgege to &ﬁé@n Salisbury he was described as 3 residsnt
of hctons (He wes described a8 a Lexington redident in the swmser and
fell of 1772.) The widow's law sult was sgeinst Deplamin Danforth whe
had, she elaimsd, unjustly entered the land end sjectod her. The suit
took plece in 1782 as:;d when the widow sold ths lond in 1785 to a
Rathen Dudlsy of Lexinglon, she guve Danforth & chence $o redeem the
farm. Denforth wie the occupler in 1782, Dut when did he move in?

4t this time we cannot give a preciss snswer to ths question. Ve do
know, however, thst Denforth did not move in &3 Mansfield moved out,
We have sesn thut Mansfiald was out by March of 1773, Dunforth was
licensed & an innholder in Bedford im September 1773. In May, 1774
snother men was licensed as innholder in the house in which Lanforth
hod awmwd,ﬁ At & minimum, there was a pariod of six months

when Mensfield wes not in the houss when Denforih eould not have

moved in. The Lexinglom or Bedford tex records might h@l;z.BB

when Uid Tt Become a Taveral

It will bs diffiouwit Lo estadlich when & bavern was opsreted on this

site, The county licensed inns and retailsrs, bul the records do not

32 Records of the Middlesex Coumty Court of General Sessions,
l??l-‘?ﬁ, P.mc

33  Odowplers of land were usually texed for it. Neithsr Danforth
nor Mansfield appesr on the 1777 Lsxingtom list, The next list
is that for 1780, Munsfiald was not taxed as & non-resident,
while Lanforth wes texsd on sn assessment of $1,328, This was
reletively low, slthough the forty scre farm was not especislly
largs. (Denlel Browa 2 ible ocwner im 1771 had a relstively
low sscessment thel yesn) Danforth wes texed for real estste .
in Lexington in 1783 and in a book whick has not yel been dated,
This sesessmert is in pounds :nd we have not yet celoulsted the
relation betwean 1780 and 1783 values, S -

LA w) B

i
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appear Lo sxdst for the tims Linedlately bsfore the Rovolution end
during the years of Revolution.”® It is certsin thet Willi:m Benjamin
was opsrating & tavern on this locction in 1800, A petition for change
in tha road establishes this‘zs Benjemin bought the lend in 1792.

The record before that date, which is our prime concern, 1s not clear.
We know thet Donforth had been an innkeeper in Bedford. He was
sssassed for & faculty of B10 in 1783 and 5i2 in &n unknown yosar,

(It se=ms that iﬁnkaepers were ascesced for their faculty.,) +e know that
Danforth was in the bullding in questlon in 1783, so it appesrs
possible that he was keeping tavern there. If we csn show that it
remained 28 a tavern after he left, that is when Dudley tock over, it

would make the probability sll the stronger.

The tax records on Nathan Dudley do not help too much, He was taxed

for a feculty of bh in 1783, 1784, 1785 and in ths undated book. This
appsars to be low for a tavern kesper, but mey not be. (The rates may
have varied with the size of the tavern.) In 1785 his loc.tion on the

tax list chanzed; he moved nsar to the spot thset Danforth had vecated,

33 conb'd.
The Bedford records might re.eal when Denfarth left Bedford,
It is not known if the rscords exist for the relevant years,

34 The volumes of records have been brieflly exaumined, There is
no racord of licenses for 1775. There is & separate volume
of license records which begins, I think; sometims in ths 17%0ts.
This will be of valus only if the land begen to be run as & tavern
after the available record of licenses begins,

35 Court of Ceneral Sessions. 17%0-1801, p. 516,



but not into it, In 1786 he had real estate and his feculty reting rose

to kb, sboub the only surs thing is thst betwden the 1790 and 1791

asgessments, he moved 19 ths north side of town and into more expensive

real sctate. He may hive started his career as tavern kesper end flip

36

meker in that Jears

36

John Duckman was rated for & feculty of £18 in 1785, and it was
bslieved that ha was a tovern keepar then. willism Benjemin's
faculty rating in the 1750's moved up &8 the vslus of his resl
estete incrsased, Sammel Stons soquired a faculty with the
npull Tavern® lsnd in 1791, and lost it when he sold the land,

Some welght can be stiached to the location of & nams on & tax
1ist, but it is not certain Just how mueh, When Dudley moved

from one page to eznothar im 1785, his finsl location was Just

shead of the hsirs of Benjemin Fiske, Fiske sbutted the

wBull Tavern® land, William Benjarin was in the same zaneral

losstion on ths tex list after he acquired the spull Tavera®
lsnd.

As Judley bought the lend from Widow selistury in Deceuber,
1785, he would not appear on tha tax 1ist for that year as
ths ownsr of the lind, I could not find Denforth on the 1785
1list, however, nor the Widow as & non-resident.

The lste Mr. Worthen said that Dudley bought lend rear the
canter of Lexington im 1785 and built & tavern on it This
desd has not yet been checked, but the changes in the tax
records for 1790 and 1791 indicate that he built in 1790.
Edwepd P. Bliss, in his article on lexingtonm Laverns, seld
that Dudley came to Laxingtom in 1790 and kept & tavern until
1838 which wes "most affectionately remenbered by our old
I8f.eee® The yuallty of his flip wes one rseson for the

fond memoriss, Bliss? article is the first volums of the
Lexington Historlesl Soclety.

Proceedines,

The tex records confirm the deeds after 1790, snd some of ths
interpretation of evidence glven sbove, In March of 1791

Tudley sold the land to Zamuel Stone. In 1790 Semmel Stone was
listed on the last page of the tax list, (Dudley was on the next
Lo lest,) Stons had no resl estate, In 1791 he wss found im
the sams place, but with Bl00 of real eststs, and he had acquired
& faculty worth 58, Dudley in 1770 was assessed abt 100 and B8.
In 1792 the real estate waswlued at 5130, He sold to William -
Benjanin in September 1792, too late for the 1792 assessmant, -
Benjemin was & resident of Lincoln st the time, In 1793 Benjamin




Lster Mlstory of "Bull Tavern.®

The tax recards sesn Yo indlcate that improvenenis were made in the
tavarn properiy from time Lo time, Thers was one mors drematie
change, the velue of Willlem Denjemin's resl eststs ross [rom

€433 in 1796 to §650 in 1797, He had not besn assessed for faculty
between 1794 and 1797, btut was now lleted at £50. Although this
wight reflect lend purchoses nob connected with the tevers farm, 4%
seems Vory possible thut these figures shaw wkmn Benjamin bullt a
new t.smem on the old aiba.BT Joal ’%’s.k.as rem oen sdvertisecent

in Decembar 1824 to inform the publie that ’2.%1@ “Glsi Lml}. Tavern® had

undsrgone mmugh repelrs, The taex mmr«ﬁs raflsct thece loproves
38

zenif,

CoRCIUSI NS - Very Tentative.
sometime, probably bebtwesn 1777 ond 1779, SenJsminm Panforth etartad
keeping tsvern in ths house shich had been owned in 1728 by Joseph

Brown. The house burned or wes tora down in 1796-97 end & new and

2 gont'd,

% i&n found on the lLexington records, sbout betwasa the spot whare
Tudlsy hed beoen found apd where Stone wes still found, Benjamin's
ssoescment for real sstate wss B130, and for faeuliy, &5, Itone
hed no sesessment for fecully and an sssessment of &30 for resl
estate, probebly reflecting e purchase hs mde from Jonathan Smith,
Jre and Eathan Dudley of twenty-ning scres of land in Junuery, 1793.
(Bk,112:99.)

37 The two years he wus not charged for faculty would indlcats that he
was pot in the tavern business then. Ferheps the eld house had
burned,; or wig taksn down, or wes conpletely remcdslled. If it was
the 1726 house, the first two courses would be the most probable

38 The ad was noted by Architsct Keune from & phatostetie eopy in t&u _
Laxington Historical Soclety, The nems of the psper is missing, but

~ there wes & reference to the distencs from Bostonm, In 1823 and 18234
Joel Viles wes as:essed for resl estete of §874, In 1825 this
ineressed $100, Others nsar him on the 1ist ~ alphebetical - did
not changs. Although thare 18 no coluumm headed "faculty® thare 1s &
coluan in the rmcwﬁs ﬁi‘xhwt 8 headl.ng ﬁm; ths&a ye&.wa. Viles hsd-



larger tavern built by William Benjsmin, The absence of Danforth
from the 1777 tax 1ist, end the fact thut, so far as we know,
Erevious owners weprs not tavern keepsrs, mske it probable that thare

wes no tavern here in 1775,

The late Mr.Worthen wrote thet the bullding burned in 1849, Before
then the new road hud separeted a 3/4 acre plece with the buildings
from the rest of the land, In ths late 1850's a barn wes put on the

3/k acre Plece and s houss built across the road,

The Jacob whitterope Homsstead, (BNHSC Report 75-4, Fhotograph No, 22) 39
Inﬁraduction:

There is nothing that connects this house with the everts of Aprdl 19,
1775 in any special menner, except that it latep bacame the homs of a

Minute Man, John H&zzqy.ao The Americans who advanced on tha British

38 conmttdq,
15 entered in it in 1823 end 1824, TIhis increased to 25 4 1825,
Others have the word "income" written over their entry in this
column, This might be a "facultyn a8sessment, «and more evidence
~that the assessment rose with improvemsnts in the tavern,
39 This section of this report is based on the Historiesl Research
Report on the Jacob wWhitt emore Homestead, Thers is not necesssr
v & direct substantiation for esach statement in this report. Some
of the items reported here as fact were werely conclusions in
the report,
40 There is some Quastion in my mind as to which John Muzzey was the
- Mimdte Man, The father was 59 at the tinme of the Battle and had
no previous military record, The son was 21 ang Baw considarable
service in the Revolution, Even his Jounger brother Thaddeus
W&E & member of the Lexington company, Neither is Thaddeus nor
Jolm Jry, eredited with bsing on the Gresn, The Froblem is thst
some of the John Muzzeys credited with military service wers called

Junlor wnd some were note If it can be shown th:t two Johns wWere ssrving

at the same time, then it would be clear that the father did serve
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on ths bluff did move througzh the fields of this farm, There was

a blacksmith shop on the farm in 1779, and perhaps in 1775. M¥r,
Houghton plsced it north of tha road, mear the bluff, and ssid a
British soldier was shot nesr it, Otherwise, this was but cne of many
farms on the Battle Rosd,

In\ 1775 Jacob Whittemore had & farm of 103 acros which wes divided

by the lLexingion-Concord or County or Country Road, (This does not
conslder three smsll seperated pieces of lind.) The plece to the
north of the road wes 60 zcres end ran betwesen the County Road on the
Southwest and the road to Bedford on the Northeast, It sesms to have
been pert of lend laid out in Cembridge Farm in 1683, when lind wus
laid out in sesticns 80 rods wids with & rengawgy or publie cccess

way two rods wlde, between the sections, The southeast Jucob Whittemore
border did not follow the r&ng@way. for its entire length. The 25

acre holding of Benjeamin Fiske bordered Jacob's 40 acres to tha west of
the rangeway, or whers the rangswey would heve gone if it had been laid
out in & straight line. (The 1756 deed for Benjarin's land did reserve
the rangewsy which went through it.) The Whittemore house and corn

house were on this 40 scre piece. ~

The other plece of Jacob's homestead was 43 scres boundsd by the
County Road on the northeast, by Josish Mansfield's land on the

southeast, by Joseph Abbott and Jacob Whittemore on the south,

LQ conttd. ~ )
«nd perhups wentto Bsnnington in 1777 at the age of 61, It seems
more reasonsble, however, that the "junior” was omitted from the
records than thst the father assumed & martial aspect in his later
yesrs, The junior tag was somstimes omitted on de=ds, '



&nd by Thomas and Josizh Selson and a rangeway on the northssst. The
rangeway on the northwest may have besen a southern extension of the
rangeway which boundsd the 60 ecrs plece on the northwest, This 43 acre
plece was narrower slong the road than the 460 acre plece, for in 1772
Jacob Whittemore, the owner, sold a small part off ths east slde to

Joslah Mensifield, his eastern abuttor. This bordered the road for 6
L1

rods, The 43 ascre plecs contained & barn, Jacob Whittemore wes the son

of Netheniel, As Jacob bought his motherts rights to a property which grestly

resembles this in 1761, it would sesm that the house had been occupled by

Natheniel who died in l?SA,Az

Buildings |
ﬁaih&niel'éﬁ%ill, written in 1752; mentioned & dwslling house, & corn house,
bern end cider mill. Thes 1701 dead clezring ths widow!s and har sacond

husbznd's claim mentionsd the ssme &nd added & shope They were living in the

%

houss st the tims, end her sacond husbend wes a gaddlar, The 1771 valustion
did not include a shop, however, The 1779 deed called the house a "mension
house,"  mentioned & corn house, &nd the burn wcross the roads whittecors
&lso reserved - did not aali =~ & biacksmith shop on the 66 aCres,

The 178L probate record of John Mugzey gives little informstion.

41 The 1938 topozraphical map of Lexington has some markkngs which
may outline this pilece. It was 63 rods on e.ch side and 13 rods
at the bottom, KHP-MM 3008 reflects this,

42  Nathaniel wWhittemore owned this land as oarly as 1738, His land
was on both sides of ths road when a committee sst out the
bounds of the road in that year, He had fences, wells, and an
orchard, This would indicste thst he had settled there, '
Lexington Town Records, III3187, (This information is not &n the
whittemore Research Report.,) Evidence of his ownership on the
south side dates back to 1721, o ‘ ‘
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LAND USE

Hatheniel Whittemore's will mentioned upland, pastureland; meadow, orchards
ing and yards around the buildings, He had an aArchard elong the north
sids of the ra&g&.m the west part of his land in 1738, The 1761 deed
was less specifie. Ths small pleca of the 43 scre plece Jacob Whittemore
sold to Mencfield wus called a nesadow. In 1779 the 50 acre pleds was
called lmproved land, orchading and woodlend. Ths northwest border of
this piece does include & portion of Fine Hill which would not be valusble
&8 enything but woodleand, From the foot of the hill, ths land slopes
gently down to & rather wet ares which bezins about 150' in back of the
hovse. This rises before it gets to Wood Street, There would sesam to

be &n ebundance of lend for tillige, msadow wnd pasturs, The 43 acre
plece was described as improved lend end woodlend in 1779« It is much

flatter then the 60 acres end toduy 4s somewhst SWARLY e

In 1771 Jacob Whittemors was taxed for 15 acres of pasture,; & acres

of tilluge, & acres of English and upland mowing, and 8 scros of fresh
mowing. This included the three pieces he owned in 1771 in adiition

to the two mein pdeces, The plecs on the south side of the rosd would
have becn larger than 43 acres since the slice had not yatl bsen sold

to Mansfield. The 1771 velustion was based on the figurss the owners
turned in. Unizproved land and wood lond wes not reported, Whittsmors
also reported that he would produce 20 barrels of cider "one year ». .

with gnotherw,

The northern portion of the bluff was owned by Jacob Whittemore, 4 mdar;n
uss of this was Lo dlg it asway for sande. This has left & scar and a serious

change in the topography,
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Walls ind Other Problems., The 604,

There is a strong possibility that the wall up the bluff along

the southeastern border is an historie wall, And the wall on the
original northwest berder which ren in & nsarly stralght line te
the County Road ig probsbly older tham 1775, The southern portion
of this wall is gons. In 1863 & triangular plece bounded on the
south by the road and by the original northwsst boundery wes sold, ‘
Psrt of the price was tha‘mﬁding of & wall around the pi&éc &slgﬁ.m
It s this wall which is lsbelled "historie" on MiP-HM 200k

There are other pleces of existing wall on the 60 acre piece which
must be investigated, There 1s also & man-made hole about

20! by 30% and perhaps 5' deep on the property for which no

explanstion is known.



{n the L3 Acres,

There 18 & wall which probably marks tha western boundary of the 3 acre
barn plsce sold abaut 1783, bvhen we know tha‘lacatiaa of the barn and
something of the bern yard, we might be sble to relsts this wall with
them, It may have existéd - when it was sold thus fixed the line
when ths proparty was divided. Or it muy hsve besen built to mark the
line,

Tabitha Welson Homsebeadt Was Tabitha Really There?

This was the home of Tabitha Nelsom, the spinster daughtsr of Thomas
Nelson, Sr.,wo had disd in 1770, It had been the home of her faiher
&t the time of hie death. Her two brothers, Thomss snd Josish lived
tcross ths Lincoln line., The ferm extended from Jacob Whittemore
on the east into Lincoln on the west, psrhsps to & lins very close to

Thomes Nelson Jr.'s hu&sc.

43 It ags been usual to believe that Thomas, tr. lived in that pert
of Laxington which was set off to Lincoln in 1754. Ceorge A.
Nelson's skatch of the ares with & house ruins in Lexington,
lsbelled the {iret Nelcon house, 1720, is the one modern indica-
tion that the father lived in Lexington. The contemporury sources
ere very delinite,however. His death is recordsd in the Lexington
vitel records, In 1770 Mr, Thomes Nelson was taxad by Lincoln as
& non-resident, &s was Tebitha in & tex list we think dated
from 177h. 3he wus taxed as a resident by Lexington in 1777,

And she wos assesced as a Lexington resident with s dwelling house
in 1771, Thers 1s a 1767 deed with Tabitha end Thomas, the father
of Josiah, Nelson given as Lexington residents. In 1779 Thomas (Jr,)
quitclaimed 8 acres, partly in Lincoln end partly im Lexington,

part of land of "our sister Tsbitha Nellson desest® (she dled in 1778),

to Joslah,

_ kb The Nelson holdings are currently being studied by Student Assistant
Maureen Dorion, The studies asre not complete and the stetements in

this snd the sections on Nelson lend which follow are not final opinions.
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The northern boundsry of the farm wus an aighty-two rods long ten acre

plece of wood owned by Ebsnszspr Fiske im 1775and by his eon after t«kmt.,ﬁs

It does not appear thet Tablths woned eny land south of the rosd,

The Land And tﬁ# 19th, (Troop Movement Karrative, p.28)

It is nol certein where Ciptain mm*s Lexington Compeny returned to
sction in the efterncon. It msy have besn on this ferm, for the hizh lind
along the rengewsy which divided it from Jecob Whitiemorat's h&iéﬁ.ngs
provided a good location for the Amsricuns. Evidence of fighting

R

was found near here in 1895,

The Puildines. The House.

On spedl 7, 1779 Thomes and Lydis Nelson desded to Samusl Hastings, who
had become thelr son-in-law on October 1, 1778, the dwelling house lale
of Tebiiha Nelson of Lexington as it then etocd by Thomas! wther dwalling
house, This indlcstes that Tabitha's house ln Lexingion, had been moved,
A photograph of the "Hastings House® (M~3HP #63-193), shows two gambral
roofed houses, side by slde, Although s study of architectursl styles
for this arsa of Middlesex Counly has yel to be nads, these appoar to be

housas built by 1750 or esrlier. A chain of title puls & house on the

Li Cont'd,
Although the Josish Felson family saved desds, plots, and other papers,
the Thomas Jr. family did pot, The fanily combined properties and
failsd to record the transactions, snd it is vary difficoult to estsblish
voundaries. Thomas Sr.'s lsnd appesrs to have beeon very close to his
son's house lot as late as 1707. (Bk. 3943:451-2) Thomsa Jr., recelved
some of his fathar's land just before he died in 1770, and also received
the westarn portion of Tabitha's land after she died, (Thomss 5r.'s
1769 tex sssessment was divided among his thres children in 1770.) The
western limit of Tabitha's land dspends upon whebher Thomazs Jr, got the
land by his house from his father or his slster, =~~~

L5 It is nt certaln thet Tebitha's land extended for tha entire eighty-
two rods. R e :
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1and owned by Tabitha in 1775 as sariy ase 1715, Thooes Nelson 5Fe
soquired thie land in 1725, 46

The Barme

when Tebltha's land was dlvidsd in 1779, the barn was slso divided
batween Joslsh and Thomas, Josizh got the southssstern portion of
1end which abutted Whittemore on the soulhsast ard Fiske on the
rortheests This latler 1line ran slong & portion of the Fishke Lo &Y
then left it by running & mors weslerly course. It wee this changs,
and perhaps soms mm&camiaé small ancles, which permitled Josieh to geb
the eestern portlon of the barn. This probebly wesns thet the bern wWes

rarth of the housae, but we can not tell if it wes sust or west of 1t

whare was The Housa?

sccording to the sct establishing the precinct of Lincoln in 1Thk, the
‘ine ren to & briage in ths rosd wsslerly of Thomes Nelson's houses

In the 1754 act aa%ablﬁ&k;mg tha town, the ganme line wes deseribed &8
rurning "to & Little Bridge in the Countrey rosd a livile weeierly of

Thomas Nelsonts house,® If it wes only & 14ttle west of the line, the

house site might ba inside the properiy of ths U.S. Alr Foree imiezy.h?

L6 Unfortunstaly, none of the decds involved make a reference te
prior daeds, and the chnin must be based on the dascription of the
1and, Fortunstely, scms of the nemss involved are uncommon, snd
some of the cwners were not large land cwners.

47 If Thomas got Tsbitha®s house because 1t stood on the land he got
from Tebitha - we do mot have this desd - then it probably was
outalde the park bounds, On the other hand, Josish!s oldest child
in 1779 was one, end hs probedbly was in & relstively new house.
Thomas® child had just marrisd, and he lived im an older house.
Perhaps Thomas got the house beczuse he nesded it, and it was of no
use where it stoode
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The Lopogrsyhy of the land eliminstss mach of 4t a3 a possible houss alte,
ond & search for it might not be as difficult as it seems,

Lend Usae

In the L77L valustion, Tabitha was listed as having three acres of English
émd upland mowing in Lexingtonm, end four acrss of the seme in Lincolns

The leter deeds fur the land inm Lexington which would have been owned by

Tabitha in 1775 imdlcede thet most of it was woodland,

. Walls stee

An 1818 desd for the southemstern pcr‘tisn of Tabltha's X775 lm, that which
bordsred saceb Whittencre, put a well along the old Whittemore boundarye

It is nob there todsy. It may have been in 1?75.&8 Thers 1s no writlen
evidencs for a wall along the northeest boundary. There is no well there

t&(ﬁ&}' @

There are deeds for ths early ninetesnih century for land which msy heve
been Lie wWestern part of Tebithals, or sven Lear her barn, which mention
walls, It is not known whers they wars, or if they wers on land which will
be pert of the parks

L8  Ses Jasob Whittemors Research Repork, P77 ££
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The Nelson PBridge

A plan of the town of Lincoln made in 1758 i:y Stephen Hosmer, Surveyor,
shows a "Nelson's Bridge™ on the Ccunty Road at the Lexington-Lincoln line,
The 1754 mct establishing ths town as given in the Lincoln Town Records
siys that the line ran to a little bridge in the Country P;@ayd.i‘*? _
i

i

Thomas Nelson, Homsstead, (ENHSC Report 4950, ezlled the Hastings Houcs,)

The 1758 and 1772 maps of Lincoln show this as the Thomas Nelson

house. The Lincoln Tax Records support this. They &lso indieste thet

it becams the Hasting Houss before Thomas Nelson dled in lBOZ,"AsQ

The Buildingg_: The Housae,

We huve sean that in 1779 the Tabitha Nelson house was moved next to
that of her brothurts, The rark hss two pictures of thess. One is very
narrow with but two closely spaced windows and a deor in front. The
picturs shows it to be but one story and an stiic, bub this mioht be
because the ground in front of it wes reised to form & ramp, es in a
bank berne The other house hes two windows, more widaly spaced to the
left of & door, and ancther of & differsnt type to the right. The R ramph
does not cover all of the front of it. We have ssen that ons pouse might
have dated to 1716 or eerlier, The cther, Thomas Jr.'s, might have been
built by Christopher Mudgin, who probably acquired the land in 1701

49 The meps are in the possession of the Lincoln Historical Socisty.
The words "Nelson's Bridgse® sre written on the Lexington side, but
Thomas Jr. and Josiah Welson lived in Lincoln near the bridge,
Themas Nelson, Sr, lived in the nezrest house in Lexingtom, =

30 In 1792 Kelson wes texed for 1/2 a dwelling house end /2 a barn =
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and mortgeged it in 3.?3335

The Barn. ’ \

It 1s not known where the burn was loceted. In the late nineteenth
century picturea; there appsers to be a barn back of the house, There
is a barn across the road %tc:day. It sesms prob&zbi@ that Thomas Jr.

owned this land zcross the road from his house, (It is elso across

the road from his fathar's houss.)

Another Builﬁin.g,? = Thomss as Retailer.

In 1771, and earlier, Thomss was licensed as a retailer of liguor in
Lincoln., where he did his business is not known. It might have been
in his houss,

The Bounds.
Except for ths boundary between Josiah and Thomas, alwost nothing is

known about the boundaries end their merking. There are same walls today,

50 contd
listed st the same velue as tha 1/2 Samuel Hastings pald taxes on,
Keither was assessed for “other buildings.® We heve no ldea how
large or substantial a bullding had to be before being listed as
another bullding.

51 He was daclared non-compos in that year, The land has a complex
history. In 1739 Thomas Melsonm, 5r., wes involved in & sult
concerning the lsnd as an occupant, slthough we do not know how he
got & right to it, His son, Thomas Jr. bought it in 1746, In this
deed there was no mention of a houss, Thomes Jr. sold more than half
of it to his brothar, Josiah in 1755. He kept a small narrow strip
between Josish's purchase and his father's land on the east. The
house sppears $o havs besn on this pilsce, 7This wes probably before
he = Thomes Jr. -~ married, One explsnstion of this strangs narrow
plece of land would be thst thers wes & houss at this location ab that
time. This i3 more likely than Lo say thst Thomas Jr, planned te
build a house thers, Nelther house in the picturs is similar to the
one Josizh built on his land, probably soon after he bought it in 1753,
He had been married in 1751, It is slso possible that Thomas Jr, .
moved & house to this locatiom, It will be seen thal there were a
few houses 10 spars on down the road, - '
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tut % L8 aiffieult to relste them to boundaries, or to lsarn thelr ags.
There sesms Lo be a wall on the Josish - Thomas Jre boundary, btubt an

existing conditions map is nesded to establish ite locatlionm.

Thomas Nelson ind The 19th.

There s & story sbout a British soldier who was looting in the house
who was shot, wounded, lingeresd, died ard wes burled w&% af %i}a house,
There is & possibility thsi tha L&z&ngﬁeﬁ Compeny returned to the fight,
end the Cambridge Company entersd it on this ferme

Site of mritish Graves (BNHSC Report L9, Troop Mavemant Nap 23-24)

On & knoll on the south sida of Nelson Road, two British soldlers are

supposed to be burled. The precise locaztion of the grave i nobl knowne

Josiah Nelson Homsstead. (BHHSC Repart, ppe33-h, 49)

Moving from Lexinglon to Concord along the Country Road, the third Nelson
house wes thet of Josish Nelsom, & brother of Thomes snd Tabitha.
Josiah's house wes probebly bullt by the Nelssons and ths farm wes tailt
up of pleces formerly owned by seversl femdlies. The farm land was

somewhat flst, a5 was trus of Thomast, and was on both sides of the

road.

Josiah bought the land the house wes built on from his brother, Thomas,
in 1755. It was a twenty-one acre plece on the northwest side of the
road, Befors that time and after that date he purchased various plsces

of land in this viciuity, on both aiﬁ&ea of the road, Josish h&é married

in }.?51. It is not known where ha lived for tha first yzmra @f his




married 1ife, but there were no children to overerowd ths houss.

Zhe Buildinesy The House,

The 1758 map of Lincoln shows the house of Josish Nelsom near this
locations This is the earliest rocord of the house, Thers are ‘
photographs of a house which ware taken sround 1900 when it wes unused.
Thay show a rectangulsr house with an e ual gable roof, Thare wers
two windows on the first floor in the front elevation, and throe on
the second floor, The one visible end has & winiow in the attie, one
on each floor émd tpravently & door on the ﬁrﬁ# floors Ths house
burned in 1908 after being unoccupled for over f@r‘ty yoars. The last
known oceupsnt died in 1855. In 1798 the houss wns valued st $250

the sime &» the Thomss Nelson houss,

The Barn.

The 1798 Federal Direet Tex listed one out bullding for Josish Nelson.
This mizht ve the barn.s 2 The photographs show a barn standing northwest
of the house site, what apjears to’be the cutline of the foundation

can be seen there today. In 1792 Josiah was taxed for his house, barm
and one other building. We cun safely cssums only that Josish had a barm
someplace in 1775,

32 This is found on list D. It is difficult $5 know what to make
of it. For district four, specifie buildings sre named end their
dimensions given on list €. In this district howsver, some persons
with one outbuilding om list D have ssversl barns and a shop, .
Others with one outbuilding en 1ist D have bub one burn on 1ist C, -




Land Use.

In 177k Josish was taxed for threse acres of tillsge, thirteen of mowing,
coe of orchard, snd fifteen of jasture, The Federal Dlrect Tix of

1798 credited Josiah @fith\tw pleces of land, one of ten acres and

one of ninety. It is probeble that this was sccomplished by combining
pleces that did not actuslly bound esch cther, slthough long lists of

plsces of lind were reported for others.

g@‘mﬁ&rﬁ.&ﬁj g&llﬁ} Ehes -

There are a number of walls stdmﬁing t-c;aé&y which may have been a

part of the Josleh Nelson Homsstesd im 1775. The esstern boundary

wall has been discussed, Thsre are soms olher walls for which there

is good evidence thst they existed in 1770, or thet a well existed in the
sare location, In that yusr Josiah bought a plecs of more than four
scres {rom Danlel Srown. It was west, or southwsshp of his house lot

end abubted {t. A plan was mads of the plece, and it csn be located

on the map made by the Alr Force in 1957. This accounts for the well
along the road = the rost questionzbie as the width of tha road may have
chenged, and the two running et sbout a right engle {rom the road,

There are & nuber of irterior walls on the portion of the Josiah
Nelson Homestead which will be within the perk. There is no informetion

a8 Wt unt Lthess,

Josish Nelson Housstead and the 19th of Amdil.

There is a tradition that Josiah Nelson carried the warning of the approsch

* the British to the mﬁ&arﬁ part af Bedford, He did cwn a horee in i??kg‘

T
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This part of the story is plausible, although others did carry the warning
to Dedford, and still othars might have besn in & better location for the
trip. The added details of the story are much less plausible, In thelir
simplest form they requirs s fsilure of Rovere or ons of his compenions
to swsken Neleon, or of Nelson to do his duty when awskened. The most
daborate form of ths tale requires belief thet & trip by Lincoln farmers
to the Boston rarket would not have been wmusual on the 19th of ipril.

There sre othsr é&fi‘iw&ti@acss

m othsr incident which hss been pessed on by leter generetions is the
story of Willlwa Thorning and the Minute Msn Boulder, The traditional
boulder, &nd several olhsr possicilities, are in the fisld which

Josish bought from Denlel Erowa in 17?6.5“

raniel Brown Homestoad (1739) = Thomas Nelson Fleld?

The ssle by Daniel Brown of land which adjoined this field on the
northsast to Josiah Nelson has besn discussed, The pla:ce Daniel kept Rorth

of the resd wes of aboub thres acres, There 1s no record of its sale, but

4% wes ascquired by Thomas Belson, probably befors l??k.§§

53 For refersnce see Troop Movement Msp, hn,

54 For a brief discussion sse the Troop Hovsment Map, ppe23=—h.

58  Daniel Brown was taxed &8s a non-resident in Lincoln in 1771, btut
not in 177h. In any case, Thomeas Nelsom is & mors likely owner
for 1775 than Daniel Brown.



Ihs John Nelson Houseg

The documents for the construction of this ;}:}@M«m@mamﬁ&ry house
mw;vu. A foundation wes dug sbout 18113 the other portion was added
about 1820 when John g% perried, There is a poesibility that ons

- Foom datss to the elghtesnth mﬁtuxy. It appears to be of eizghtesnth
century construction, ff’hém 1s no documentary evidence for Lhis portion
axcept for the possibility that sn item in the construction pill

for sltaring en ol chimney relates to this poom.

It does not seem likely that there was & room in this locetion in 1775,
The site wes not on a rosd in 1775. 4ind there 18 no evidences for the houss,
There is the possibility thet this room was moved to this site - that 1%
is one of the misedng houses of this arsé. Ths Daniel Brown house is ons
wsi%aili& .56 There is & bsrn with ths house todey, The fromt part
might be of surly or mid-ninetesnth cantury,

Foundstion Ruins

The found:ition between Felson Rosd snd Route 24 is & mystery, It Sppesrs
-¢ be about 500 long. Ths inslde of the back wsll 4s shout 23" Irom the
hesr edge of the current Relson Road, which {s near the locotion of the

56 The item for eltering the old chimney indicotes thst the room wesuwed
&8 & separate wunit, and this causes Purther complications,

R P sy s
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old road, if the stone wells nserky ers old, Thare appesars to be a cornar

on one side, cnd it s sbout 10%' from the inside of the back well, In any
case,it was a nerrow building, Mr. Edwin Worthem 5F., suggested that it might
be the site of whet he @w@é the Hoar Tavernm.

This foundation might heve bazmn connected with the Danisl Brown house, ong

of the farm outbuildings, He had a little over sevan soras on the other side
of the roa&d? but sbout twenty-three on the side with this foundation., There
is no speclal m&smm think that this was & Revolutionsry building, The lund
by the foun&&t’i«sﬁx wWad &équir@é by Josizh Nelson before 1218, | Tt is probable

thet Danisl Brown dld not own it in L77he |

Qther Lsnd Fast of Qld Concord~Lexinsteon Line.

. Josiuh Nelson moquired the land slong the south side of the Country Roed
betwesn present day Mill strest snd the old Concord-Lexington 1ins hefors
1775, The wecternmost plsece wus a triangular orchard of about one half

HEY8,

The lmnd on the north side of the roed 48 mors difficult, and parhsps
_more important. We can start st the Lexington-Concord lins with a

) purchase by Thomss Kelson of four acres from Danlel Hager, s laborer of
lincoln in 1763. This plece had had & house om 1t in 1752, but in several

desds aftsr thet dste, there was no mention of a hms«;ﬁ?

57 Tbenezer Lamson hsd purchased it in 1752. Lsmson morbtgaged some
lend in Consoxd early im 1754 - befors the formstion of Lincela =
and was deseribed 23 & Concord resident. Thus we know that in
1754 he did not 1ive in the housa he had purchased in 1752. The
land was taken as Judgoemt for a debt in 1760, snd the naxt two -
dasds did not mentiom & house, R4

= -
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The lend immedlately to the east of these four sorss purchased by Thomes
Kelson in 1763 wes cwned Ly Rethenlel Whittemors st the time of the
puarchass, It is ssoumed thet this was Nathsniel, the brother of Jacob
of Lexinglon, who had inherited sixty scres in two pleces in Lexingdton
and cmmré in 1758 from his t&t&&r, (The will was written in»l?ﬁa

snd this &xpl&ixﬁ the towns mu&im&d.)‘g& Batheniel, the lhusbend of
Jemima, sold land south of ths ro.d to the Nelsona, snd this is the
reason for assuming thet it was the same Nethaniel who owned the lend
north of the road,

Nathanlel, Hemima's husband, did not find it sasy to settle down, His
firet bhild wes borm in Linceln in 1754, In September of 1756 he wes of

In 1764, 1755 &«nd 1708 he wes the same. The lincoln tax recerds eonfirm

that & Hathanisl wWhittemors lived inm thie &r&a.se From this 1% seons

‘lagical, but psrhaps erroneous, Lo conclude thut this Hathaniel sold &ll his

58 | There are soms problems with the Huthenlel Whitismores', There
| was ons in Lexington and one in Concord, sbout two miles spart snd
 both marrisd Abigsils, Both hsd sons named Hathanulel. The daughber—
- in~law of the Lexington Rethoniel wes Jemima, and it is hoped that
the other Eathaniel Jr, dld not merry & Jemims, We also know thak
. & Hethanlel Whittemore died in ldncoln inm 1773, It has been asswnad
. that this was Jumima's husband, slthough this is not so stated, Jemima
- did remarry in 1778 in Lincolm., We do not know when the Lincoln
Hathaniel Sr., & msn of some wealih, dled, or if he remsined in ths area
- afber selling 203 zcres in 1758, Thore was another Nathsnlel who died
_ in Lincoln or Concord im 1780 with but a half acre and & poor dwelling
~ house, His widow was poor and in debt, but she was not named, -
59 In 17684 his rsel estate wes sssessed st %5, or one-third that of =
Thomas Kelson. He eleo had & horse snd two sows, In 1769,1770 e
1771 he wus tuxed for a cow and his poll tax, The family dissppesred

from the lists after that, In 176k his neme was emong those who lived

along or near the Country Road, In 1769-71 he followed Aarom Brooks
who lived Just south of the road and s little to the west of Polly Fond,
and Josiah Nelsom. ; o . S T S A

B

Lexington, a husbhu.ndman. In May of 1757 he wss a husbandman of Iincoln., .

§
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lend by 1769, tul remsinsd im the ares while living with ancther family,
(They may have lived with apcther fasdly while he still owned land, if
thers was no house on the land.) |

60

The family steyed in the area aftor Netheniel dleds = It is impossible

to say that thay lived with a family whose house was wilhin the parks %

Ferhaps Aaron Prooks iz the best possibliity, It is interesting te

note thot they did not go to ldve with Nathanlel's brother, Jucob, o1

We have two or perhaps three emply or missing houses in about one thousend

feet from tha old Lexingbton-Concord line to ths four acroes plus Josiah

Belsan yurchssed from Deniel Browm im 17703 the Ebanezer Lemson house '
of his 1752 purchase, the Denlel Brown houss of 1739, end the possible

Bsthaniel whittemors house., Unlesy a desd 48 found for the land In qusstion,

we probebly will never know if there wers houses on these pleces of lsnd

in 1775. Nor san we be sure thot am enply house would have besaen noled

on & deeds

60 The widow was merried im Lipcoln in 1778, and a dsughber wss married
in Lexington in 1782 to an Acton Haxme .

61 It is assumed that Mathaniel did not live in & house owned by another
on another's land afber 1758, because, ae far as we kaow, he would
have besn taxed for this, It is possible that he had moved sn unused
house onto the sbxty zcres of lsnd he inherited from his father in
175k, This was in laxington snd Concord, or this area., The best
possible site for his homs in the new town of Lincoln is om the land
north of the roed, to the east of the four acres Thomas Relson scquired
which sbutted the old Lexington-Concord line, assuming it wss the lash
plece he sold, This could have besn in a house he or his fsther bullg,
although no house is mentioned in the will, Or it could have besn the
houss Ebenszer Lemson bought im 1752, which was missing, according te
the deeds, in 1760. Or it could have been the Daniel BErown house.
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This is iamportsnt for two reasons, An exply hopee would have been

pert of the historiesl seere, Zad thers is the story of Willlam Deawes

tricking the Britisk officers by drawing his horse up short st am
supty house, The Lamson house 1s too elose to the site of Revere's

@zxﬁnm, but the othsr two, or one, emply houses are possibilities,

i
|
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The " ther Lend® snd the 1%th of April,

The ezptiwe of f‘wlﬁwxm hes been mentioned. It 4s not certaim that
this oceurred on Lhale.«;ingban eide of ths a}.é Concord-Lexington line,
or whether the m&nmrﬁwhi@ merks it wes placed thers, (An exi&ti@ ;
conditions msp would help.) It appeers possible thet it occurrsd on the
lend of Thomas Nelson. Hr. Persey talls how bhe storted & ma?%mnt

to have ths site of the sspture marked, and how ths site was marked,

as clocaly &s could be ascertained ot thuet time - 1299, The markap

was placed by bars in & stone well, scmwsthing that confuraed to Revsre's
story. How they knew just which tars 1s not explained anywhers. The

rosd has besn changed end the monument movaed,

The relation of & houss oa this land to Willlsam Dawss escape has besm
discussed sbove, The other avent is that of Willlsm Thorning's firsth
shob or shols et the Britlsh which wsre fired from s fisld west of the
Kimte Man Boulder. we do not know sdbout any of the flz2lds in thet arva
to say which mignt have had the tranches of one versiom, or the hiding
place of another versioa, But the story puts Thorning's shots snd nerrow
escepe in this sres.



The first plece of lsnd to the west of the cld town line was purohesed
by ﬁ&iw}g whittesore of Copoord im 1750 2t which time it hed s houve,
xmm@?m 50ld the portion of this lund which was nesrest the rosd =
tle g;iage;m wilch probably had had the house - to Xilzabsth Dodge, Lhe
wifa of Willles in 1758, Ho houss wes mantioned inm this deed, This
¢ead was passed in Ajril ard in October Willlsm Dodge rerted the land
to Elizab:th Procter for ssven yeers, This was the lsst deed recorded
concersing the lond until 1780 when Dodge sold it te Rev, wililam Smith,
of vaymouth, This deed i= oo gensral to zive informstiom about the
place of land - sbowk ten to fifieen pores - in questiem, It 15 z3ouwosd
th:t thers was no house om it in 1775, elthough we do not Imow where it

&
wanh ¢

62 In 1750 when Fatience Lamson pstitlicnsd for permission to splib
the farm she had reesived froxm har hushand, whe sald that she had
& buyer who would wove the burn snd the house. Hathinlel Whitismwre
bought the land, and title %o the Duildings, bul we do nol know
where hs moved them, or if he moved them.



